INTRODUCTION 


This is an appeal from the September 29, 2011 Order Granting the Individual 

Defendants' Joint Motions To Dismiss Plaintiffs' Petitions For Civil Contempt and To Vacate 

The 2008 Order As Against Them (the "Dismissal Order") of the Circuit Court of Kanawha 

County (Stucky, 1) ("Circuit Court") dismissing contempt proceedings initiated by Manville 

Personal Injury Settlement Trust ("Manville Trust"), Amalgamated Bank, as trustee for the 

Longview Collective Investment Fund ("Amalgamated Bank"), and California State Teachers' 

Retirement System ("CaISTRS"). 

I. 	 ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

A. 	 The Circuit Court Erred in Concluding that Civil Contempt No Longer 
Provided a Compensatory Damages Remedy for Previous Violations of a 
Circuit Court Order. 

B. 	 The Circuit Court Erred in Concluding that Delaware Law Applied to a 
Stipulation that "Shall Be Considered to Have Been Negotiated, Executed and 
Delivered, and to be Wholly Performed, in the State of West Virginia, and the 
Rights and Obligations ofthe Parties to the Stipulation Shall be Construed 
and Enforced in Accordance with, and Governed by, the Internal, Substantive 
Laws of the State of West Virginia Without Giving Effect to That State's 
Choice of Law Principle." 

C. 	 The Circuit Court Erred in Concluding that Petitioners Lacked Standing to 
Prosecute the Civil Contempt Proceeding and in Refusing Requested 
Discovery. 

n. 	 STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This case arises out of a long history of corporate misconduct at Massey Energy 

culminating in the Upper Big Branch mine explosion on April 5, 2010. At issue is 

Respondents' refusal to comply with an Order issued by the Circuit Court mandating the 

monitoring of those violations and other safety issues. 
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A. Background to the 2008 Order 

On July 2,2007, Manville Trust commenced the underlying litigation in the Circuit Court 

derivatively on behalf of Massey Energy Company ("Massey" or the "Company") for breach of 

fiduciary duties to the Company. The parties settled that case pursuant to a stipulation dated 

May 20, 2008 (the "Stipulation"). JA000034. After notice to Massey shareholders and a 

hearing, the Circuit Court approved the settlement and incorporated the terms of the Stipulation 

into its Order approving the settlement dated June 30, 2008 ("2008 Order"). Manville Personal 

Injury Settlement Trust v. Blankenship, 07-C-1333 (Cir. Ct. Kanawha Co. June 30, 2008). 

JA000030. This proceeding arises out of the failure of certain Massey Energy officers and 

directors to implement the clear mandates of the 2008 Order and the damages resulting from 

their contempt. JA000030. 

Pursuant to the Stipulation, Massey Energy "agreed to make certain changes to its 

corporate governance policies and procedures relating to director oversight and conduct 

regarding environmental compliance and mine worker safety." JA000044-45. Those changes 

are set forth in the Corporate Governance Agreement ("CGA"), attached as Exhibit 2 to the 

Stipulation, which provided that "shall each remain in effect for a period of five (5) years, 

subject to modifications permitted therein." JA000062. The 2008 Order incorporates the 

Stipulation "as if it is set forth in its entirety . . . as operative terms and provisions of this 

Judgment, including the Massey Energy Company Corporate Governance Agreement appended 

thereto." JA000031. It also incorporates "as if set forth in their entirety" the Circuit Court's 

"findings of fact and conclusions oflaw as set forth on the record at the June 25,2008 hearing on 

the final approval of the settlement stipulation." JA000031. 
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At that fmal approval hearing, the Circuit Court found that the provisions of the 

Stipulation mandating reporting to shareholders regarding the Company's mine-safety and 

environmental compliance "certainly are designed to cause the Company to be more mindful of 

its violations and to be more mindful of its reforms and its strategy as we move forward, because 

they will not be closely held." JA000629 at 63:16-24 (emphasis added). Th.e Circuit Court 

also found that these settlement provisions "are likely to enhance workers' safety and 

environmental protections and make the company and its shareholders less likely to be held 

liable or fined for violations in the future." JA000630 at 64:12-14 (emphasis added).l 

As discussed, the CGA's fundamental purpose was to implement a reporting system to 

deliver environmental and safety compliance information up Massey's corporate structure, from 

the mines to the Board, and ultimately, to the shareholders. A primary purpose of this system 

of monitoring, reporting, and disclosure was to ensure Massey's compliance with mine safety 

laws, rules, and regulations and to hold the Board accountable to the Company's shareholders for 

compliance. 

The quoted sections are part of the broader findings and conclusions stated by the Court at the final 
settlement hearing: 

I think those are [public] reporting requirements, certainly are designed to cause the 
company to be more mindful ofits violations and to be more mindful of its reforms and 
its strategy as we move forward, because they will not be closely held. They're going to 
have to be reported, according to the terms and conditions ofthis settlement. 

I find that these substantive reporting, management and monitoring requirements in this 
agreement are more likely to effect substantive change within the company that will 
benefit not only the company but its employees as well as the public. 

Again, I find that if you review the complaint together with the settlement terms, the 
Court fmds that these terms adequately address the alleged misconduct contained in the 
complaint. 

I find that the settlement provisions are likely to enhance workers' safety and 
environmental protections and make the company and its shareholders less likely to be 
held liable or finedfor violations in thefuture. 

JA000629-30 at 63:20-64:15 (emphasis added). 
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B. The Upper Big Branch Explosion 

On April 5, 2010, an explosion at Massey Energy's Upper Big Branch Mine at Montcoal, 

West Virginia, killed 29 miners. Investigations subsequent to the disaster revealed systematic 

mine-safety compliance failures leading up to the explosion at Upper Big Branch and at other 

Massey Energy mines. See, e.g., JAOOOOI5-19, JA000945-46 at ~~ 1-2, and JA000960-67. 

C. The Rule to Show Cause and Subsequent Proceedings 

From information disclosed in the immediate wake of the disaster, it became clear that 

the then-current members of the Massey Board had violated the terms of the Order. On April 

15-16, 2010, Petitioner Manville Trust filed (1) a Motion for a Rule to Show Cause as to Why 

the Board of Directors of Massey Energy Company Should Not be Held in Civil Contempt in 

Case No. 07-c-1333 ("Massey!"), with a supporting memorandum, affidavit, and exhibits 

consisting of a total of 176 pages, based on alleged violations of the Order leading up to the 

explosion at Upper Big Branch ("Rule to Show Cause Motion") JA000005; and (2) a shareholder 

derivative complaint alleging continuous and systematic oversight failures by current and former 

officers and directors since May 20, 2008, Manville Personal Injury Settlement Trust v. 

Blankenship, No. 10-c-715 ("Massey II"). 

The memorandum and supporting evidence for a rule to show cause demonstrated that 

the named Respondents-the members of Massey Energy's Board of Directors (the "Director 

Respondents")-had violated the fundamental dictates of 2008 Order to enhance worker safety. 

As explained in the memorandum, "[f]undamental to the Order and Settlement's corporate 

governance changes is a reporting system to deliver compliance infornlation up the corporate 

structure from the mines to the Board, and ultimately, to the shareholders ...." JAOOOOIO. 

Pursuant to that reporting system, particular individuals had specific roles as part of an overall 
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process to report on the Company's compliance with mine-safety laws rules and regulations. 

At the top, the responsibility fell on the Board of Directors to "make a Corporate Social 

Responsibility report to its shareholders on an annual basis that shall include, among other 

things, a report on the Company's ... worker safety compliance." JAOOOOll (citing 

JA000063-64 at ~ 5). 

As explained by Petitioner's submission, the Corporate Social Responsibility Report 

("CSRR") was devoid of any information on compliance, much less anything constituting a 

report. JA000012. Rather than report on compliance, the CSRR paid lip service to safety in 

the most general terms and included data on a single statistic, Company-wide Non-Fatal-Days 

Lost (''NFDL'') incident rates. As Petitioner's submission explained, ''NFDL incident rates 

measure days lost from injuries, not compliance with any, much less all, 'applicable mine safety 

laws and regulations'" as contemplated by the 2008 Order. JA000013. Moreover, Petitioner 

presented data from MSHA released after the Upper Big Branch explosion demonstrating that 

the reported NFDL incident rates correlated poorly to mine-safety compliance in terms of the 

number of citations and orders issued by MSHA at Massey mines. JA000013-14. Thus, the 

Board violated the plain edicts of the 2008 Order by failing to provide any report on compliance 

in the 2009 CSRR. 

Petitioner also argued that because the CSRR represented the culmination of the 2008 

Order's mine-safety compliance reporting system, the utter absence of compliance information 

suggested farther-reaching violations. JA000015. Data released by MSHA in the wake of the 

disaster supported this conclusion, and it was submitted to the Circuit Court along with 

statements by mine-safety experts explaining the systemic and serious nature of the mine-safety 

violations at Upper Big Branch in the months leading up to the explosion. JA000015-19. 
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Based on this factual predicate, Petitioner requested a rule to show cause and discovery to 

determine the full nature and extent of the Directors' non-compliance with the 2008 Order. 

JA000026. On April 22, 2010, the Circuit Court granted Petitioner's request and issued a Rule 

to Show Cause based on its finding that Petitioner had "made a prima facie showing that the 

Directors have violated" the 2008 Order. JAOOOI84. Pursuant to the rule, the Circuit Court 

would conduct a hearing at a future date to be determined by the court at which the Director 

Respondents would have an opportunity to show cause why they should not be held in civil 

contempt. JAOOO 184-85. The Circuit Court also set a scheduling conference for the following 

month. JAOOOI85. 

The Director Respondents filed a motion to vacate the Rule on May 3, 2010, 

JAOOOI91-94. arguing that the ex parte presentation of the motion was improper under West 

Virginia Trial Court Rule 24.01(b). 

On May 26. 2010, Petitioner filed and served requests for the production of documents 

concerning Director Respondents' compliance with the 2008 Order. JA000210. Director 

Respondents had flatly refused to produce any documents without making any specific 

objections as required by W. Va. R. Civ. P. 34(b). JA000231. 

On July 6, 2010, Petitioners filed a motion to compel the production of documents and 

noticed that motion for the same date and time as Director Respondents' motion to vacate. 

JA000243. 

On July 9. 2011. Petitioner filed a response to Director Respondents' motion to vacate. 

JA000257. In that response, Petitioner explained that ''the proper means for initiating a civil 

contempt proceeding under West Virginia law is a rule to show cause issued pursuant to an ex 

parte primafacie showing." JA000261. The response further pointed out that "West Virginia 
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circuit courts have a 'mandatory duty' to issue a rule to show cause following a prima facie 

showing." JA000260. 

On July 13, 2010, the Circuit Court denied Director Respondents' motion to vacate, but 

afforded the parties additional briefing on the Rule to Show Cause to be argued at a later hearing. 

JA000330 at 61:7-9,61:22 and JA000331 at 62:1-5. The Circuit Court deferred adjudication of 

Petitioner's Motion to Compel until that hearing, staying discovery in the meantime. JA000331 

at 62:10-12. 

In their July 23, 2010 Memorandum of Law in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for an 

Order for a Rule to Show Cause and for Expedited Discovery, Director Respondents argued that 

they were not in contempt; that to the extent the CGA is ambiguous, its ambiguity precluded 

contempt; and that Petitioner cannot establish that Massey has been harmed. JA000343-51. 

Petitioner filed a Memorandum in Further Support of the Court's Rule to Show Cause on 

August 3, 2010. JA000539. In response to Director Respondents' ambiguity argument, 

Petitioner presented authority supporting the appropriate standard: "[t]o avoid a fmding of 

contempt, a party must make in good faith all reasonable efforts to comply with [the order]" and 

that "[a] party is required to comply substantially with the Court's order, and [s]ubstantial 

compliance is found where all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure compliance: 

inadvertent omissions are excused only if such steps were taken." JA000543 (citations and 

internal quotation marks omitted). Although Director Respondents attempted to reduce the 

contempt findings to a narrow question of whether the 2009 CSRR failed to "include ... a report 

on the Company's worker safety compliance," Petitioner's memorandum stated that the 

deficiencies and inaccuracies in the CSRR suggest more far-reaching violations of the Order's 

reporting requirements. JA000544-45. The facts presented demonstrated that Director 
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Respondents had substantially failed to implement the overall monitoring and reporting system 

as required by the Order. JA000545. The memorandum further pointed out that ''the 

complete refusal of the Board to include anything scarcely representing a worker safety 

compliance report in the CSRR 2009 represents a substantial violation of the Order and 

Settlement" and that ''this violation [was] made all the more egregious by the Company's 

systematic noncompliance with worker safety laws, rules, and regulations in 2009, a year touted 

by [Director Respondents] as the 'safest' in Company history." JA000549. In this context, 

the relevant standard would be whether Director Respondents had made a "good faith 

attempt ... to comply" "or substantial compliance" with the Circuit Court's order. JA000549. 

On August 11, 2010, Petitioner Manville Trust filed a Motion to Consolidate Massey II 

with this action and noticed a hearing on that motion for August 20, 2010 at the same date and 

time as the hearing on the briefing on the Rule to Show Cause and Petitioner's Motion to 

Compel. On August 18,2010, Director Respondents filed an opposition to Petitioner's motion 

to consolidate ahead of that hearing. 

On November 22,2010, the Circuit Court held a hearing in Massey I on the Defendants' 

and Petitioner Manville Trust's additional briefmg on the Rule to Show Cause, Petitioner's 

Motion to Compel the Production of Documents concerning Defendants' efforts to comply with 

the June 30, 2008 Order, and Petitioner's Motion to Consolidate Massey II and this action. The 

Circuit Court found that the Rule to Show Cause should continue and granted Petitioner's 

Motion to Compel the Production of Documents. JA000921 at 60:5-6. The Circuit Court 

declined to consolidate Massey II with this action. JA000921 at 60: 1-4. 
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D. The May 31, 2011 Petition and June 13,2011 Rule to Show Cause 

On May 31, 2011, Petitioners filed a new Petition for Civil Contempt (the "Petition"), 

JA000944, and on June 13, 2011, the Circuit Court issued a Rule to Show Cause returnable on 

October 24, 2011 (the "Rule"), JA001284. The Rule further set a scheduling conference for 

July 5, 2011. JA001285. 

In the May 31, 2011 Petition, Petitioners set forth deposition testimony and internal 

Massey documents regarding the Respondents2 failure to follow the requirements of the 2008 

Order by failing to implement the required monitoring, management, and reporting system. 

Specifically, in paragraphs 25-30, the Petition reads as follows: 

25. Pursuant to the Order, Massey Energy is required to create a 
monitoring system whereby a "Vice President for Best Safety Practices ("Safety 
Compliance Officer") ... shall report to the SEPPC except to the extent that the 
SEPPC in its judgment otherwise delineates an alternative reporting structure for 
the Compliance Officers, including to whom within the Company the Compliance 
Officers shall report." (CGA at 6.) However, Phillips, Massey Energy's 
current President and CEO (and member of the SEPPC at the time of the Upper 
Big Branch explosion), testified that the Safety Compliance Officer contemplated 
by the CGA in fact never reported to the SEPPC as required by the Order. 
(Phillips Dep., May 10-11, 2011, 398:24, 399:4.) Rather, Chamberlin, the 
Safety Compliance Officer, reported directly to Blankenship. (Id.) Notably, 
the SEPPC never delineated this alternative reporting structure for Chamberlin; 
rather, it was dictated by Blankenship from the start. (Id. at 399:7-25.) 

26. The Board also ignored the other "Corporate Compliance 
Management Positions" required under the CGA. (CGA at 6.) The CGA 
required that, in addition to the Safety Compliance Officer, "[t]he Company shall 
also maintain ... full-time Safety Compliance Managerial Positions to be 
responsible for its Resource Groups." (Id.) But, the Company never created or 
filled the positions. (Blankenship Dep., May 12, 2011, Ex. 13 at 
MEEDEL00097086 (Safety Department Structure chart).) Instead it continued 
to rely on its "Safety Directors," who concerned themselves primarily with 
recording the numbers of work days missed due to injury, not legal compliance. 

2 The May 31, 2011 Petition named as contemners the same Director Respondents named in the April 16, 
2010 Petition in addition to Stanley C. Suboleski, M. Shane Harvey, Mark A. Clemens, Elizabeth S. 
Chamberlin and Richard R. Grinnan (collectively the "Respondents"). 
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(Phillips Dep. 378:8-379:3.) Massey's Safety Directors met monthly with 
Chamberlin and discussed the overall number of violations received with a focus 
on how much they were costing the Company, but without addressing what 
specific violations had occurred. (UBB Report 95.) There is no indication she 
was ever tasked with "examin[ing] and evaluat[ing] the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Resource Groups" internal control procedures" - the full-time 
job of the Compliance Managers required under the Order. (CGA at 7 § C.2.) 

27. Because of the Board's failures in this regard, the safety 
management, monitoring, and reporting system required under the CGA never 
materialized. As Phillips admitted in deposition testimony, nothing about 
Massey's safety organization was "materially different" after the 2008 Order and 
Stipulation. (phillips Dep. 375:1-18) Accordingly, Blankenship, who remains 
an admittedly outspoken critic of mine safety regulations, remained at the helm of 
the Company's safety organization without Board oversight or control. 
(Blankenship Dep. 70:2171:12.) 

28. Documents produced during the course of this and related 
litigation also reveal that Crawford, the SEPPC Chair, only asked for information 
to be reviewed about the safety compliance reporting system within the Company 
after the Upper Big Branch explosion and after the contempt proceeding first 
was initiated in this Court. (Blankenship Dep. Ex. 12 at 2 (Mins. of Special Mtg. 
of the Bd. of Dirs. of Massey Energy Co., May 3, 2010).) In response, "Mr. 
Blankenship indicated that a description of how the safety program is structured 
and how it works would be provided at the upcoming Board and Committee 
meetings to be held at The Jefferson [Hotel in Richmond, Virginia], May 16-18[, 
2010]." (Id)

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