Petitioners, Manville Personal Injury Settlement Trust ("Manville"), the 

California State Teachers' Retirement System ("CaISTRS") and Amalgamated Bank, as trustee 

lor the Longview Collective Investment Funds (collectively, "Petitioners"), appeal the 

September 29,2011 Order of the Circuit Court of Kanawha County (the "Circuit Court") 

dismissing the contempt proceeding initiated against Don L. Blankenship, Baxter F. Phillips, Jr., 

E. Gordon Gee, Richard M. Gabrys, James B. Crawford, Bobby R. Inman, Robert H. Foglesong, 

Stanley C. Suboleski, J. Christopher Adkins, M. Shane Harvey, Mark A. Clemens, Elizabeth S.

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

argument would not aid in the decisional process and is unnecessary. 
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SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 


Petitioners' claims fail for three reasons, each independently fatal. First, as of the 

ctlective date of the merger between Massey and Alpha, Petitioners, as plaintiffs suing 

derivatively on behalf of Massey, ceased to own shares in Massey and there tore lack standing as 

a matter of law to continue this action. Second, Petitioners were only able to enforce the 

Stipulation on behalf of Massey, and thus, Petitioners' attempt to enforce the Stipulation also 

fails. Third, even if this Court were to conclude that Petitioners have standing to sue, 

Petitioners' claims still would fail as a matter of law because Petitioners brought a civil contempt 

claim, and West Virginia law is clear that a finding of civil contempt is improper when, as here, 

compliance with the court's order is impossible. In light of these reasons, and each 

independently, the Circuit Court did not err in dismissing the Petitions and vacating the 2008 

Order as against Respondents. 

In this appeal, Petitioners argue that the Circuit Court erred in (1) deciding that 

Petitioners lack standing to enforce the Settlement; (2) applying Delaware law to determine the 

issue of Petitioners' standing; and (3) deciding that a civil contempt proceeding may properly be 

maintained only when the contempt is sought to compel compliance with an operative court 

order. (Pts. Br. 16.) None of these arguments has merit, and each should be rejected. 

First, the instant action involves the adjudication of the rights and responsibilities 

of a corporation and its shareholders. Massey is a Delaware corporation. West Virginia law is 

clear that whether a shareholder may assert a claim on the corporation's behalf is governed by 

the law of incorporation. Thus, Delaware law governs whether Petitioners may assert claims on 

behalf of Massey. (See infra Parts LA, LB.) 

Second, under the clear terms of the Stipulation, Petitioners sued and settled 

derivatively and had standing only derivatively on behalf of Massey to enforce the Settlement, 
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either through civil contempt or otherwise. Under black-letter Delaware corporate law requiring 

the continuous ownership of shares to maintain a derivative action, Petitioners lost this standing 

as ofJune 1, 2011, when Petitioners voluntarily relinquished their Massey shares in exchange for 

a substantial monetary premium. Petitioners' pleadings fall far short of meeting the showing 

required to establish the application of any exception to this rule. For this reason alone, 

Petitioners' claims fail. (See infra Parts I.A, I.C, I.D.) 

Third, West Virginia contempt law is clear that the purpose of civil contempt is to 

compel compliance with an existing court order and that when compliance is impossible, civil 

contempt is improper. Petitioners concede, by virtue of the Merger, that Respondents' 

compliance with the 2008 Order is impossible. For this independent reason, Petitioners' claims 

fail and the 2008 Order was correctly vacated as against Respondents. (See infra Part II.) 

ARGUMENT 

I. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DECIDING THAT PETITIONERS 
LACK STANDING TO CONTINUE THEIR CONTEMPT ACTION. 

Petitioners contend that in "dismissing this proceeding, the Circuit Court 

mistakenly conflated Petitioners' standing to bring the original derivative action" with 

"Petitioners' standing to enforce the 2008 Order for the benefit of the Massey Energy 

shareholders bound by the 2008 Order". (Pts. Br. 28.) It is Petitioners who are mistaken. The 

Circuit Court correctly ruled that Petitioners' claims are derivative, and their right to bring 

claims on behalf of Massey, a Delaware corporation, is governed by Delaware law. In so 

deciding, the Circuit Court correctly rejected each of the theories of direct standing that 

Petitioners now raise. The Circuit Court further recognized that even if any ofPetitioners' 

theories ofdirect standing had merit, which they do not, the clear terms of the StipUlation 

preclude the arguments that Petitioners repeat here. Finally, the Circuit Court correctly ruled that 
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Petitioners lost their standing to continue their contempt claims on behalf of Massey when they 

ceased to be Massey shareholders. 

A. 	 The Circuit Court Correctly Held that Petitioners' Claims Are Derivative. 

Despite purporting to bring their New Petition '''individually and on behalf of all 

other similarly situated shareholders'" (JAOO 1761 ~ 68 (citing New Petition at 2», it is clear that 

Petitioners' claims are derivative. As acknowledged in the Stipulation, Manville commenced the 

underlying claims in the proceeding below derivatively on "'behalf of nominal defendant Massey 

Energy Company' to remedy damages allegedly sutTered by Massey". (JA001753 ~ 36 (citing 

Stipulation at 2).) Consequently, Manville stipulated and agreed to the Settlement "derivatively 

on behalf of Massey". (ld. ~ 38 (citing Stipulation at 7,10).) The "Settling Parties" were 

defined as "each of the Defendants and the Plaintiff derivatively on behalf of Massey". 8 (ld. ~ 39 

(citing Stipulation ~ 1.12).) 

Moreover, as the Circuit Court recognized, Manville has stated that it was acting 

"derivatively on behalf of Massey" in every one of its numerous filings before the announcement 

of the Merger. (JAOOI754 ~ 42.) Manville styled its original motion for a rule to show cause as 

part of the underlying "Derivative Action". (JA000008.) Manville stated in the first sentence of 

the Old Petition that it was seeking contempt "on behalf ofMassey". (ld.) Petitioners captioned 

Massey as a "nominal defendant" in both Petitions. (JAOO 1754 ~ 42.) In its Motion to 

Consolidate, Manville explicitly argued that the contempt proceeding was brought "derivatively 

on behalf of and for the benefit of Massey Energy Company".9 (JA000840; see also JA000846.) 

8 It is a matter of black-letter law that in a derivative suit, the corporation "is the real party in 
interest, the stockholder being at best the nominal plaintiff'. Ross v. Bernhard, 396 U.S. 531, 
538 (1970). 

9 The Circuit Court noted that Manville also stated that it was seeking contempt "on behalf 
ofMassey" in its First Set of Requests for the Production of Documents, both of its motions to 
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Petitioners also concede, as they must, that Petitioners CalSTRS and Amalgamated Bank were 

not parties to the Stipulation (Pts. Br. 27, 28-29), nor was any other former Massey shareholder. 

The only way that CalSTRS and Amalgamated Bank have standing to enforce the Settlement by 

civil contempt or otherwise is through a derivative suit. See In re Tyson Foods, Inc. Consolo 

S 'holder Lilig., 919 A.2d 563, 598-99 (Del. Ch. 2007). 

In an attempt to retain standing after the Merger, Petitioners now purport to bring 

their contempt claims as a class action (JAOO 1761 ~ 68), but it is clear from the harm that 

Petitioners allege that Petitioners' claims are derivative. Petitioners contend that the "gravamen 

of [their] claims are direct" because the "heart of the 2008 Order is a reporting and disclosure 

obligation" that the corporation owed "directly to shareholders". (Pts. Sr. at 29.) Petitioners cite 

Albert V. Alex. Brown Management Services, Inc., Civ. A. 762-N, 2005 WL 2130607, at *12 

(Del. Ch. Aug. 26, 2005), arguing generally that claims against directors and officers for 

fraudulent omissions and misstatements are usually direct claims. (Pts. Sr. 30.) 

Despite their prose, Petitioners have not pleaded a direct claim. As recognized by 

the Circuit Court, "whether a claim is direct or derivative is not a function of the label a party 

gives it. Rather, that is determined with reference to the nature of the wrong and to whom the 

relief should go". (JAOOI761-62 ~ 68 (internal quotations omitted).) In Albert, the defendant 

Managers' failure to honor their disclosure duties inflicted independent "harm ... to the 

unitholders" and as a result, "the unitholders would receive any recovery, not the 

compel the production of documents, its response to Respondents' joint motion to vacate and in 
its memorandum of law in further support of the Circuit Court's rule to show cause. (JA001754 
~ 42.) 
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rpartnershipj".10 2005 WL 2130607, at *12-13. "Moreover, the partnerships were not harmed 

by the alleged disclosure violations." Id. at * 12. In finding the claims to be direct, the Albert 

Court held that "[i]n order to show a direct injury under Tooley [v. Donaldson. LUfkin & Jenrelle, 

Inc., 845 A.2d 1031, 1033 (Del. 2004)], a [shareholderJ 'must demonstrate that the duty breached 

was owed to the [shareholder] and that he or she can prevail without showing an injury to the 

[company]". Id. Petitioners here cannot make such showing. Nor have they pleaded such in 

either Petition. 

In the New Petition, the only harm Petitioners allege is that "Defendants' alleged 

breaches of the 2008 Order 'led directly to the massive explosion at Massey Energy's Upper Big 

Branch mine",.ll (JA001762" 69.) Although Petitioners fail to specify who was harmed, 

theirs is clearly an allegation of direct harm to Massey. Any harm that Massey's shareholders 

allegedly suffered is derivative of the harm allegedly suffered by Massey. 12 The disclosure 

violations that Petitioners now contend are the "gravamen" of their claims are, in fact, the 

"purported breaches of the 2008 Order", which Petitioners pleaded led to direct harm to Massey. 

Thus, the Circuit Court correctly held that "regardless of whether Plaintiffs could assert a direct 

claim, ... the claim [Petitioners] have, in fact, asserted is derivative". (JAOOI762, 70.) 

10 Albert involves partnerships, but the court relied on both corporate and partnership case 
law because "the determination of whether a claim is derivative or direct in nature is 
substantially the same" under each. 2005 WL 2130607, at '" 12. 

II Manville did not allege any harm to either Massey or its shareholders in the Old Petition 
and, instead, argued that it did not have to establish harm. (JA000544, see also JA000556 at 
n.6.) 

12 The Circuit Court also noted that "in the suit these [Petitioners] maintain before Judge 
King, filed April 15,2010, [Petitioners] allege that that the Upper Big Branch explosion harmed 
Massey and seek to recover damages for that harm derivatively". (JAOOI762, 69.) 
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II. 	 The Circuit Court Correctly Held that Delaware Law Governs Whether 
lletitioners May Assert Claims on Behalf of Massey. 

Massey is a Delaware corporation. Thus, the Circuit Court correctly held that 

"Delaware law applies to the issue of whether former Massey shareholders have standing to 

assert a claim on behalfofMassey". (JA001693 ~ 75; see a/so Elish, 189 W. Va. at 744,746, 

434 S.E.2d at 416, 418 (holding that "the local law of the state of incorporation should be applied 

to determine who can bring a shareholder derivative suit" "unless another state has a more 

substantial connection or the application of the other state's law would be contrary to our public 

policy").) Because "the battle over who can participate in a shareholder derivative suit is a 

struggle peculiar to the corporation itself and must be handled as such", a West Virginia court 

will apply the law of incorporation absent extremely compelling public policy considerations. 

Elish, 189 W. Va. at 745, 434 S.E.2d at 417. 

As the Circuit Court recognized, the Stipulation's choice-of-Iaw clause is ofno 

moment to the applicable law governing the rights that a shareholder has with respect to the 

corporation. (JAOO 1763 ~ 73; see a/so Restatement (Second) of Conflict of Laws § 302 & cmt. a 

(1969) (noting that under the "internal affairs" doctrine, the law of the jurisdiction of a 

corporation governs "the relations inter se of the corporation, its shareholders, directors, officers 

or agents").) 13 On the issue of who has standing to sue, West Virginia's interest in ensuring the 

safety of its miners is not an overriding concern (Pts. Br. 26), as it would be perhaps on an issue 

of what law should govern liability in the pending wrongful death actions. 

13 Petitioners' assertion that the Circuit Court did not properly consider the Stipulation's 
choice-of-Iaw provision (Pts. Br. 23-24) is baseless. The Circuit Court did not ignore the 
presumptive validity of the choice-of-Iaw provision (id. 24), but rather correctly decided that the 
provision does not govern (JAOOI763 ~ 73). 
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Petitioners' reliance on Tyson is misplaced. Tyson is a Delaware case governed 

by Delaware law, which does not involve a contlict-of-Iaw issue. Moreover, the language upon 

which Petitioners rely is from the portion of the court's opinion dealing with the breach of 

contract claim, Tyson, 919 A.2d at 599, which is not relevant here. Regardless, even if relevant, 

that language establishes only that, under Delaware law, multiple shareholders can join a 

derivative claim to assert a claim on the corporation's behalf. It does not establish that by 

entering into a settlement agreement of a derivative claim with a choice-of-Iaw provision, the 

law governing the corporation's former shareholders' rights with respect to the corporation is 

determined by application of that provision. 

Petitioners' contention that the Circuit Court failed to consider whether public 

policy considerations require the application of West Virginia law rather than Delaware law (Pts. 

Br. 25-26) also fails. The Circuit Court considered Petitioners' public policy arguments and 

correctly rejected them as insufficient. (JAOOI763-64 ~ 74 ("As in Elish, however, Plaintiffs 

have failed to identify a sufficient public policy reason for West Virginia law to be applied over 

Delaware law."); see also Elish, 189 W. Va. at 745, 434 S.E.2d at 417 ("Further, there is no 

identifiable public policy reason for West Virginia law to be applied over that of Delaware .... 

While [the corporation] is a prominent employer in West Virginia, the battle over who can 

participate in.a shareholder derivative suit is a struggle peculiar to the corporation itself and must 

be handled as such.").) Notably, none of the Petitioners is a resident or citizen of West Virginia. 

Moreover, "[t]his is not the 'extremely rare situation' that would require deviation from" the rule 

that Delaware law, the law of the place of incorporation, governs Petitioners' right to bring this 

action on behalf ofMassey. (JA001763 ~ 74.) 
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C. 	 The Circuit Court Correctly Held that Under the Terms of the Stipulation, 
Petitioners 00 Not Have Standing To Enforce the Settlement Other than 
Derivatively on Behalf of Massey. 

The Circuit Court correctly ruled that Petitioners failed to plead any cognizable 

theory permitting them to continue their contempt action directly. Even if they had, by the clear 

terms of the Stipulation, Pe~itioners released any claim of standing to enforce directly the 

Settlement. 

I. 	 The Circuit Court did not err in deciding that Petitioners do not have 
standing other than as provided for in the Stipulation. 

Petitioners raise various theories that they argue confer standing upon them to 

enforce directly the Settlement. The Circuit Court properly rejected all of them. 

Petitioners' contention that they have standing because the Circuit Court "retained 

jurisdiction over the parties for purposes of the implementation and enforcement of the 

Settlement" (Pts. Hr. 26-27 & n.3) is misguided and unavailing. As the Circuit Court explained, 

"[i]t is undisputed that this Court has jurisdiction to decide these motions" but jurisdiction is not 

at issue; rather, "[t]he issue for the Court's consideration ... is whether [Petitioners] have 

standing to seek contempt now that they no longer own Massey shares". (JAOOl761 ~ 66.) 

Petitioners also argue, relying on United Mine Workers ofAmerica v. Faerber, 

179 W. Va. 73, 365 S.E.2d 353 (1986), that "a party to the original action seeking to enforce a 

court order benefitting that party is the appropriate party to prosecute a civil contempt 

proceeding". (Pts. Hr. 26.) Petitioners again miss the point. Respondents do not dispute that 

generally a party to an underlying action has standing to enforce a court order entered in its favor 

in that action. Here, however, Petitioners do not have standing to enforce the Settlement 

directly, because the underlying action is a derivative action, in which case, the law is clear that 

"the corporation 'is the real party in interest, the stockholder being at best the nominal plaintiff". 
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(JA001755 'I~ 45-47 (citing Ross, 396 U.S. at 538-39).} Accordingly, as the Circuit Court 

explained, "[Petitioners'] reliance on [Faerber] is misplaced because [Faerber] did not involve 

derivative litigation". (Id. ~ 48.) 

Petitioners also contend that (1) the 2008 Order "is a tinal, nonreviewable order 

that Respondents cannot now challenge" (Pts. Br. 28) and (2) they have standing because they 

have a "'legally cognizable interest'" in ensuring compliance with the Settlement because

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